LAGRANGE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS NOVEMBER 7, 2011

A regular meeting of the Town of LaGrange Zoning Board of Appeals was held on Monday,
November 7, 2011 at LaGrange Town Hall, 120 Stringham Road at 7:30 p.m. Chairman Paul
Bisceglia called the meeting to order. Board members Nancy Swanson, Aaron McPeck, Marc
Komorsky, Mark Christenson and alternate Sandra Lane were present.

Mr. McPeck made a motion to accept the minutes of October 3, 2011 as submitted. Ms.
Swanson seconded and the motion carried unanimously. MINUTES ACCEPTED.

NEW BUSINESS:

11-11-01 AREA VARIANCE: GAS LAND PETROLEUM INC., 349 NOXON ROAD,
POUGHKEEPSIE, NEW YORK Grid No. 6360-03-259493

Seeking relief from Chapter 240-43 Attachment 10:1 which requires that a monument sign for

1 - 4 occupants have a maximum area of 24 sq.ft., a maximum height of 9’; a front setback of 10’

and a side setback of 15’ in order to construct a 48 sq.ft. monument sign with a proposed height

of 14’; a front yard setback of 7.0’ and a side yard setback of 3’.

Margaret McManus of the Chazen Companies was present to represent the application. Ms.
McManus was sworn in by Mr. McPeck.

Ms. McManus explained that this was an existing site at the corner of Titusville and Noxon
Roads. There is an existing sign on the property that is nonconforming. The applicants received
site plan approval in 2005 and at that time a condition of the approval was that the sign be
removed and be replaced with a lower sign. During the time that has passed the applicant has
realized that a lower sign would not be visible, especially from Noxon Road as you come over
the hill. Now they are looking for a variance to replace the existing sign with a sign similar in
nature. The sign would also be closer to the road and a little bit farther on the hill. With the help
of the retaining wall, cars coming over Noxon Road would be able to see the sign as they
approached.

Mr. Bisceglia asked if that was the main purpose for the height and location of the sign. Ms.
McManus said that was correct and they would want to advertise their business.

Mr. Bisceglia asked if there was a plan for a sign that would be allowable without a variance.
Ms. McManus said the code actually states that they are allowed to have two signs of 24 square
feet each because this is a corner lot so in essence he is combining them into one sign that is 48
square feet in size. The applicant is allowed a 10 high sign and they are proposing a sign that is
14’ high which is not out of character with the existing signs in the area. Mr. Bisceglia said,
referring to the application, that it appeared they are proposing a sign 7’ from the front property
line and 3’ from the side. Ms. McManus said the code does permit the building inspector to
allow at his discretion a setback of 3’ from the front property line if they had been able to
comply with the other sections of the code.

Mr. Bisceglia asked what was the height of the existing sign. Ms. McManus said it is 15°. Ms.
McManus explained that it won’t appear that the sign is 14 high as there is a stone retaining wall
as the slope comes down, and she indicated where that was detailed on the plan. The plan also
showed proposed landscaping and she said that the existing sign also has substantial plantings

1



LAGRANGE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS NOVEMBER 7, 2011

around it. Ms. McManus said it did not appear that there was a big gap below the sign because
of the plantings.

Mr. Komorsky asked how the existing nonconforming sign got to be there. Ms. McManus said
the existing nonconforming sign was already at the site when her client purchased and renovated
the site in 2005.

Ms. Swanson asked whether her client had considered having the two signs that would be
allowed. Ms. McManus said she did not know. She said they needed this much square footage in
order to have a digital sign so that the price could be changed from inside the building. If the sign
was smaller there would not be enough room to have the name of the gas station and be able to
inform the public of the price of the gas.

Ms. Swanson said the application says there will be external lights; she asked where those lights
would be. Ms. McManus said she put that down because she was not sure if the client wanted a
low light and she inquired if the code allowed a low light up or whether only a down light would
be permitted. She added that she felt this would be a self-illuminated sign and an external light
would not be needed. The area around the sign of brick and stone would not be lit.

Mr. Bisceglia asked the width of the existing sign. Ms. McManus said it is about 5 Y2 feet
excluding the posts. Mr. Bisceglia asked the width of the proposed sign. Ms. McManus said it is
5’ 1.25”, which is slightly narrower, plus the columns which are 2’ wide. Mr. Bisceglia said that
totals over 9 feet.

Mr. Bisceglia made a motion to open the public hearing. Mr. Komorsky seconded and the motion
carried unanimously.

Paul Bernabe of 302 Titusville Road was sworn in my Mr. McPeck. Mr. Bernabe asked to see
the site plan. Mr. Bernabe asked where the sign is located now and where it was proposed to go.
Mr. Bernabe indicated that his property was the Laundromat property around the corner on
Titusville Road. Mr. McPeck said that the sign would be on Noxon Road. Mr. Bernabe asked
about the visibility because of the size of the sign. Ms. McManus showed Mr. Bernabe on the
plan where the sign would be located. Mr. Bisceglia asked Mr. Bernabe if he had any direct
concerns. Mr. Bernabe now understood where the sign would be located. Mr. Bisceglia said the
height of the sign is actually one foot lower but four feet wider than the existing sign, but it
would be closer to the road.

Ms. Lane said the existing sign does not indicate “Dunkin Donuts” on it. Ms. McManus said that
is correct. There are three price banners. They are going to put two price banners on the new
sign. Ms. Lane asked how many signs were on the building advertising Dunkin Donuts. Ms.
McManus said she was aware of at least one but was not sure if there were more.

Mr. McPeck said as he understood it, the illuminated part of the sign was going to stay basically
the same, only the monument part would be different. Ms. McManus said that was correct.
Sunoco has pretty standard signs and the existing sign is just an older sign, and these are the
newer dimensions.

Mr. Bisceglia said he would like to see a mock-up of what is allowable in the code, i.e. a 24
square foot sign. Ms. McManus said when you make a sign that small, the size of the numbers

2



LAGRANGE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS NOVEMBER 7, 2011

that are illuminated to show the price of the gas are also decreased in size. Mr. Bisceglia said he
understood that but they are moving the sign closer to the road. Mr. Bisceglia said he felt there
should be a site visit scheduled as a group. Ms. McManus said she had the property line marked
and the 3’ off the property line has been staked. Mr. Christenson asked was the reason they are
wanting the sign to be so close to the road because of the curve in the road as you come down the
hill. Mr. Christenson said he has driven that way and the existing sign is visible. He questioned
the size of the bricks and mortar addition to the sign being so close to the road.

Ms. McManus asked if Mr. Christenson had an issue with the location of the existing sign. Mr.
Christenson said he did not. Mr. Christenson said he was wondering why a more substantial sign
and being closer to the road was proposed. Ms. McManus said more so than closer to the road is
closer to the back property line, to gain a little height so the sign can be seen when you’re a little
farther away. Mr. Christenson asked whether the measurement of 4 feet to the base was from the
earth or from the parking lot. Ms. McManus said she is not seeking to get a 20 foot sign, she is
just looking to gain exposure. Mr. Komorsky asked how much air is between the sign and the
ground. Ms. McManus said it is about 6 feet. Mr. Komorsky said as he understood it, they
planned on bringing the sign closer to the road, and lowering it to the 4 foot podium. Ms.
McManus said there would be an earth retaining wall with plantings in front, so esthetically it
would not look like there is a giant sign with air underneath it. Ms. McManus said she would be
happy to meet with the ZBA at the site.

A site visit was scheduled for the following Saturday morning at 10 o’clock to be attended by
those board members who could be there.

Mr. Bisceglia said the application would be adjourned to the following month and he asked Ms.
McManus to prepare a 24 sq. ft. comparison sign elevation for the board to see at that time. Ms.
McManus said she assumed the 24 sq.ft. calculation was just for the sign, not including the posts.
It was confirmed that was correct. In the rendition of the sign Ms. McManus would include the
posts.

Ms. Swanson asked for clarification of some of the items depicted on the plan. Ms. McManus
said the circles are plants and she referred to the chart at the top of the plan which gave more
information as to the type of plants proposed and their location.

Mr. Bisceglia made a motion to adjourn the Gas Land public hearing to the December meeting.
Ms. Swanson seconded and the motion carried unanimously. PUBLIC HEARING
ADJOURNED

11-11-02 AREA VARIANCE: MICHAEL FIORISI, 289 DIDDELL ROAD,
POUGHKEEPSIE, NEW YORK. Grid No. 6359-02-994778

Seeking relief of 10° from the minimum setback of 55’ from the right of way of a town road in

order to construct a 42’ x 10’ front porch with roof with a proposed setback from the r.o.w. of

Didell Road of 45°. (Mr. Fiorisi received a variance on 9/12/11 for relief of 8 for a 42° x 8" front

porch. He is now seeking relief of an extra 2 feet)

Mr. Fiorisi was present and was sworn in by Mr. McPeck.

Mr. Fiorisi said he had received a variance in September 2011 in order to construct a 42° x 8’
front porch with a proposed setback of 8’ from the right of way of Diddell Road. Under

3



LAGRANGE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS NOVEMBER 7, 2011

advisement of one of the board members he was back that night seeking relief of an additional 2
feet.

Mr. Bisceglia made a motion to open the public hearing. Mr. Komorsky seconded and the motion
carried unanimously.

There being no public comments, Mr. Bisceglia made a motion to close the public hearing. Mr.
Komorsky seconded and the motion carried unanimously. PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED

Findings:

Character of the Neighborhood and Detriment to Nearby Properties

This will be an enhancement of the property

Alternative Methods for Achieving Benefit Sought by Applicant

There is no alternative place for a front porch

Substantiality of VVariance Requested

This is not a substantial variance. On 9/12/11 a variance was granted for relief of 8’ from the
r.o.w. of Diddell Road in order to construct a 42’ x 8’ front porch with a proposed setback of 47’
from the road. The applicant now proposes to expand the porch to 42° x 10’, thus requiring relief
of an additional 2 feet. The total combined variances will result in relief of 10” from the r.o.w. of
Diddell Road

Effect or Impact on Physical or Environmental Conditions in the Neighborhood

This will enhance the house and make the neighborhood better.

Self-Creation of Difficulty

This is a self-created difficulty but is justified because it will enhance the property.

Based on the Findings, Mr. Bisceglia made a motion to grant Michael Fiorisi of 289 Diddell
Road an additional 2 feet for a total of 10 feet from the right of way of Diddell Road in order to
construct a 42’ x 10’ front porch with a proposed setback of 45 feet from the right of way. Mr.
McPeck seconded and the motion carried unanimously. AREA VARIANCE GRANTED

There being no further business before the board, Mr. Bisceglia made a motion to adjourn the
meeting at 8:00 p.m. Mr. Komorsky seconded and the motion carried unanimously.

Respectfully submitted

Susan Quigley, Secretary



